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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND
GREENBELT DIVISION

EDREES BRIDGES,
Plaintiff,
Case No.: 8:21-cv-01319

COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND
PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARY-
LAND, a municipality; and,

PRISON MINISTRY OF AMERICA,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff EDREES BRIDGES files this Complaint against Defendants PRINCE
GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND and PRISON MINISTRY OF AMERICA (collec-
tively “Defendants”), for religious discrimination in violation of the First Amendment of the
United States Constitution’s Establishment and Free Exercise Clauses and 42 U.S.C. § 1983

under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, and states as follows:
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Introduction

1, Plaintiff Edrees Bridges has been a volunteer chaplain for Defend
George’s County’s jail in Upper Marlboro Maryland since 2018. On April 23, 202
learned that Defendant was accepting applications for a paid chaplain position and
an application to apply.
2. But Edrees Bridges could not even complete the application. This
Defendant PG County illegally required all applicants to sign a so-called “Statem
plicant’s Christian Faith.”
3. This “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” requires applicants

that they “believe in one God, Creator and Lord of the [i’niverse, the co-eternal T|
ther, Son, and Holy Spirit,” that “Jesus Christ, God’s Son, was conceived by the H
born of the Virgin Mary, lived a sinless life, [and] died a substitutionary atoning de
cross,” and that “the Bible is God’s authoritative and inspired Word...without errc
teachings, including creation, history, its own origins, and salvation.”
4, The Establishment Clause prohibits the kind of religious test Defe

quired Edrees Bridges to complete.

3.

abandon his religious beliefs as a Muslim as a condition of eligibility to even apr

paid chaplain in Prince George’s County Jail. This violates his rights under the Esta

Clause and Free Exercise Clause of the First Amendment.

The “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” illegally requires ]
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Jurisdiction and Venue

6. This Court has original federal question jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s
violations of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983, under 28 U.S.C
7. This Court has federal question jurisdiction, under 28 U.S.C. § 1343 ¢

tiff’s claims regarding the deprivation under color of State law of rights secured b
and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States and the 1z
United States.
8. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because Defe
County resides and conducts business in the State of Maryland and Defendant PM A
business in the State of Maryland.
9. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiff's constitutional claims

U.S5.C. § 1983.

10.

U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202, 28 U.S.C. § 1343, by Rules 57 and 65 of the Federal Rul

Procedure, and by the general, legal, and equitable powers of this Court.
Il Plaintiff’s claims for attorneys’ fees and costs are predicated upon 42
1988 which authorize the award of attorneys’ fees and costs to prevailing parties,
U.S.C. § 1983. |
12. This lawsuit seeks damages under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

13. Venue is proper under 42 U.S.C. § 1391 as to the Defendants becaus

ants operate within the geographical boundaries of the State of Maryland, and the st

part of the acts described herein occurred within this district.
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Plaintiffs
14.  Plaintiff Edrees Bridges is an Assistant Imam at the Ali Khan Islam
where he leads congregational prayers, counsels community members, and otherv
as a religious leader. Bridges has a Masters in Divinity with a concentration in Islas
laincy from the Bayan Claremont School of Theology and is currently pursuing his
in Ministry at the Claremont School of Theology.
Defendants

15.  Defendant Prince George’s County, Maryland (“PGC” or “PG Cou
fines sentenced persons in its facilities as well as those awaiting trial. PG County pre
policies, customs, and practices regarding the religious exercise of persons confine
cilities.

16.  Defendant Prison Ministry of America (“PMA”) is a non-profit org
that has contracted with PG County to oversee official duties regarding the provisi
gious services to people incarcerated at PG County’s jail. Defendant PMA describ
pose and vision as “to bring the message of abundant life through faith in Jesus
citizens in their lowest hour, their time of greatest spiritual need.”

Nature of this Action

17. This 1s an action for damages and declaratory and injunctive relief aris

the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States and

§ 1983. Plaintiff seeks costs and attorneys’ fees under 42 U.S.C. § 1988.
18. Defendants have not identified any compelling government interest for

chaplain applicants to sign a “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith.”
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19. Nor have Defendants narrowly tailored their customs, practices, and policies re-
garding its application processes to any purported government interest.

20.  Defendants have failed to enforce the applicable laws, policies, direc ives, ordi-
nances, and regulations in the least restrictive means possible.

Defendant PG County Jail enlists Defendant Prison Ministry of America
to hire a PG County Jail chaplain

21. Defendant PG County entered into a contract—the PMA-PGC Ag,rement—
with Defendant Prison Ministry of America to hire a chaplain who would possess state au-
thority in the exercise of their chaplain duties at Defendant PG County’s jail.

22. In entering into the PMA-PGC Agreement, Defendant PG County delegated to
Defendant PMA and its agents public functions that positioned both to act under the color of
state law with respect to fulfilling their obligations under the PMA-PGC Agreement.

23. The chaplain role that Defendants were recruiting and hiring for envisioned a
person that would work “with the Prince George County’s Inmate Services Division to de-
velop and oversee religious programs at the County Jail facility.”

24.  The chaplain that Defendants sought to hire at PG County’s jail would “super-
vise, direct, and sponsor interdenominational worship services and religious educational ac-
tivities for inmates.”

25. The chaplain would “establish rules and guidelines governing the conduct of re-
ligious services” at the County Jail and then “supervise the religious services being provided
to assure that the rules and guidelines are being adhered to.”

26. The chaplain would “screen and supervise the activities of all volunteers who

wish to participate in religious programs” at the County Jail.
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27. The chaplain Defendants sought to hire would serve as Defendant PC
official with authority to determine what religious services are provided at the ]
whom, how those services are provided, and who provides these services.

Defendants Require Chaplain Applicants to be Christian

28.

jail, Bridges would minister to the Muslims incarcerated there. He would lead N
congregational prayer and offer spiritual guidance and education to Muslims befor
the prayers.
29.  When the pandemic began in 2020, PG County stopped allowing v
including Bridges, to enter the facility to support the religious needs of incarcerees.
less, Bridges remained a volunteer and eagerly awaited the resumption of his du
County’s jail.
30. On April 23, 2021, Mark Maciel—who is PMA’s executive direct
Bridges and left a voicemail. On the voicemail, Maciel identified himself and indi
he was calling Bridges “on behalf of Prince George’s County jail.”
31,
Bridges and Maciel, Maciel asked if Bridges was still interested in volunteering
George’s County Jail. Bridges stated that he was still interested in continuing his

duties at the facility.

32,

into the facility. Maciel explained that PG County Jail was in the process of hiring a

and that volunteers would be allowed back when the facility made that hire.

Bridges called Maciel back after hearing the voicemail. During the cal

Bridges also asked Maciel when PG County jail would allow volunt

4

5 County’s

ail and to

Since 2018, when Plaintiff Edrees Bridges began volunteering at PG County’s
Muslims in

e and after

olunteers,
Neverthe-

ties at PG

nr—called

cated that

1 between
at Prince

volunteer

eers back

, chaplain




Case 8:21-cv-01319-PWG Document 1 Filed 05/27/21 Page 7 of 14

33.  Bridges expressed to Maciel his interest in being hired for the position. After

discussing the responsibilities and other details regarding the position, Maciel offered to send

Bridges an application. Bridges and Maciel exchanged email addresses and concluded their

call.

34. On April 24, 2021, Maciel emailed Bridges a copy of the PG County Jail Chap-

lain application and a job description of the chaplain position. Maciel directed Bridges to

complete both and “attach a resume” when he emails the materials back to Maciel. The

“Chaplaincy Application” and “Position Job Description” are both attached to the Complaint

as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.

35.  Bridges, who was excited to apply for the position, reviewed the application

immediately. He was disturbed that Defendants’ application made clear that Bridge’s faith as

a Muslim would exclude him from the applicant pool.

36.  Though Bridges satisfied the minimum qualifications for the position other

than the qualification that requires “at least two years membership in a recognized church,”

Bridges could not submit the application because the application requires him to “subscribe”

to a “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” that is incompatible with Bridges’ beliefs as a

Muslim.

37.  The “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” is a part of PMA’s policy es-

tablishing the requirement that all persons PMA hires, including the chaplain at Defendant

PG County’s Jail, “are committed to a lifestyle of Christianity and agree with our statement

of faith.”
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38.  This “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” is consistent with ]
PMA’s vision, which is to “bring the message of abundant life through faith in Je
to citizens in their lowest hour, their time of greatest spiritual need.”
39.  Plaintiff Edrees Bridges cannot maintain his faith and act in furthera
fendant PMA’s mission, because he is Muslim rather than Christian.
40.  Bridges cannot sign Defendants’ “Statement of Applicant’s Christic
because to do so, Bridges would have to abandon his religious beliefs as a Muslim.

4].

Bridges’ religious beliefs, including but not limited to, in the following ways:

a. As a Muslim, Bridges does not believe in the “co-eternal Trinity; Fa

and Holy Spirit” articulated in Defendants’ “Statement of Applicar

tian Faith.”

lieve that Jesus Christ is “God’s son...conceived by the holy Spirit..
only mediator between God and Man.”

Bridges does not believe that people, like him, who “do not believe
Christ [is] their Lord and Savior” are condemned to be, after deat

from the dead for eternal suffering and separation from God.”

42.

cation. Bridges did not submit an application for the chaplain position for one rea

Defendants’ “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” is incompa

While Bridges believes Jesus Christ to be God’s prophet, Bridges do

Bridges does not believe “in one holy, universal, and apostolic Churc

On May 3, 2021, Defendant Maciel emailed Bridges to inquire about
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because he was unwilling to sign the “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” and other-

wise submit to the illegal religious test that Defendants have made a part of the application

process.

Count I

Violation of First and Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution

(Free Exercise of Religion)

43.  Plaintiff hereby realleges and incorporate by reference the foregoing paragraphs

of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

44.  Defendant PG County is a governmental entity subject to Section 1983 and the

First and Fourteenth Amendments of the U.S. Constitution.

45.  Defendant PMA, as a Government contractor fulfilling an essential govern-

ment service, is acting under color of law and is therefore also subject to Section 1983 and the

First and Fourteenth Amendments of the U.S. Constitution.

46.  Defendants’ hiring practices and its use of the “Statement of Applicant’s Chris-

tian Faith” caused and continues to cause Plaintiff harm because it forces him to choose be-

tween applying for a position with Defendants or sacrifice his core sincerely-held

beliefs.

religious

47. Defendants’ hiring practices do not permit Plaintiff and other similarl y situated

Muslims or other non-Christians to apply for the chaplain position while maintaining their

religious beliefs.

48.  Defendants have deprived and continue to deprive Plaintiff of his right to the

free exercise of religion as secured by the First Amendment to the United States Constitution,

made applicable to the States by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitu-
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tion, by both imposing and implementing unconstitutional and discriminatory h
tices that substantially burdens Plaintiffs’ religious exercise by compelling Plaintiff
religious beliefs incompatible with Islam.
49.  Defendants’ hiring practices caused and continues to cause Plaintif]
cause they unlawfully attempt to coerce Plaintiff into sacrificing his core sincerely
gious beliefs.
50.  Defendants have arbitrarily and unjustly adopted hiring practices th
neutral insofar as Defendants’ hiring practices explicitly require applicants to be C
to be willing to convert to Christianity.
51. By imposing and implementing the above-described hiring practices
ants have imposed a substantial burden on Plaintiff’s exercise of Islam.
52.  Imposition of such a burden is not in furtherance of a compelling £a
interest and is not the least restrictive means of furthering any governmental interes
ling or otherwise. Defendants could have, but did not, allow all persons of all religi
grounds to apply for the chaplain position as is standard for jails and prisons across
try.

53.  Plaintiff is entitled to a declaration that Defendants’ hiring practice

substantial burden to the free exercise of Plaintiff’s religion, is not justified by a c«

government interest, and is in violation of Plaintiff’s First and Fourteenth Amendm

to their free exercise of religion.
54,

form requested in the Prayer for Relief below.
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55.  Defendants’ unlawful actions caused Plaintiff harm and Plaintiff is
injunctive and declaratory relief, compensatory and punitive damages, in addition

other relief this Court deems just and proper including costs and attorneys’ fees in t

Count IT
Violation of First and Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constit
(Establishment Clause)

56.  Plaintiff hereby realleges and incorporates by reference the foreg

graphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

57.  Defendant PG County is a governmental entity subject to Section 19
First and Fourteenth Amendments of the U.S. Constitution.

58.  Defendant PMA, as a Government contractor fulfilling an essenti
ment service for PG County in accordance with the PMA-PGC Agreement, is act
color of law and is therefore also subject to Section 1983 and the First and Fourteent
ments of the U.S. Constitution.

59.  Prior to the PMA-PGC Agreement, Defendant PGC had a similar
with a different proselytizing Christian organization, Good News Jail and Prison
(“Good News”). That agreement between PG County and Good News—which d
decades—was for PG County to make periodic “donations” to Good News and in
Good News would oversee all religious services at PG County’s jail.

60. PG County’s agreements with PMA and Good News reflect PG

longstanding, facility-wide efforts to officially prefer Christianity in its jail and disfas

In recent years, PG County has treated Christians congregating for prayer differe

Muslims doing the same thing.
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61.  Defendants’ hiring practices, the involvement of Defendant PMA 3

tarian purpose, and Defendants’ use of the “Statement of Applicant’s Christian F
Muslims and others less favorably than Christians, creating a denominational
against Islam.

62.  Defendants’ hiring practices, the involvement of PMA and its sect
pose, and Defendants’ use of the “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” are ta
to an endorsement of Christianity and appear as such to any reasonable observer.

63.  Defendants have deprived and continue to deprive Plaintiff of his 1
free from religious discrimination in violation of the Establishment Clause to
Amendment to the United States Constitution, by imposing and implementing disct
job application practices that discriminate against Plaintiff on the basis of his religi

64.  Defendants have required Plaintiff to abandon his faith and become
as a condition of his employment.

65.  This condition has the purpose and effect of advancing Christianity

Defendant PMA’s mission is to disseminate a Christian message to people who are

ated and its discriminatory hiring practices are aimed at advancing that mission.

66.

ological beliefs of applicants, Defendants’ hiring practices result in an excessive enta

with religious matters.
67. By identifying a particular set of Christian beliefs and requiring appli
subscribe to them, Defendants are establishing an official government-sanctioned

orthodoxy. This excessively entangles Defendants in matters of Christian theology.
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68. By implementing the above-described hiring practices, Defendants
cially preferred Christianity over Islam and other faiths.

69.  Defendants’ hiring practices, the involvement of PMA and its sect
pose, and Defendants’ use of the “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” treat
and others less favorably than Christians lack a compelling state interest. Defendant
is to proselytize, which is not a legitimate government purpose.

70.  Defendants’ unlawful actions caused Plaintiff harm and Plaintiff is
injunctive and declaratory relief, compensatory and punitive damages, in addition

other relief this Court deems just and proper including costs and attorneys’ fees in t

Prayer for Relief

Plaintiff requests that this Honorable Court enter judgment in their favor a1

Defendants, and enter an Order awarding the following relief:

have offi-

arian pur-
s Muslims

s’ purpose
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to all such

his action.

nd against

1. A declaratory judgment that:

a. Defendants’ use of “Statement of Applicant’s Christian Faith” as a part of
their hiring process for positions regarding Defendants PG County Jail is
illegal.

b. Defendants’ actions to restrict the chaplain position to persons who are
Christian violate the law.

2 An injunction:

a. Enjoining Defendants from utilizing a “Statement of Applicant’s Christian

Faith” as a part of their hiring process for positions regarding PG County

jail.

13
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b. Requiring Defendants to remedy the constitutional and statutory|violations

identified above, including, but not limited to, eliminating any existing pol-

icy whereby Defendants restrict the chaplain position to persons who are

Christian.
a4 An award of compensatory and punitive damages against Defendants under 42
U.8.C. § 1983.
4, An award of attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses of all litigation, under 42

U.S.C. § 1988; and,
5. Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury of the above-referenced causes of action.
Respectfully submitted,
CAIR LEGAL DEFENSE FUND

BY: /s/ Lena Masri

LENA F. MASRI (20251)
GADEIR 1. ABBAS (20257) *
JUSTIN SADOWSKY (21028)
453 New Jersey Ave, SE
Washington, DC 20003

Phone: (202) 488-8787

*Mr. Abbas is licensed in VA, not in D.C.
Practice limited to federal matters.

/s/ Mirriam 7. Seddiq
MIRRIAM Z. SEDDIQ (27908)
JUSTIN EISELE (19326)
SEDDIQ LAW FIRM

110 North Washington Street
Rockville, MD 20850
Justin.eisele@seddiglaw.com
Phone: 301.513.7832

Dated: May 27, 2021
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EXHIBIT A
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s Prison Ministry of America

A Faith Ministry Providing Chaplains for Law Enfo
Jails and Prisons

o

CHAPLAINCY APPLICATION

Confidential
DATE OF APPLICATION: DATE OF HIRE:
. PERSONAL DATA:
Full Name:
Address:
City: State Zip Code
Fax Number E-mail Address
Date of Birth Birth Place
Nationality
Social Security Number: Drivers License Number:

Are you willing to submit to a Live Scan and/or Background Check? 0O Yes O No

. EDUCATIONAL RECORD:

High School: Date of Graduation:
College/University:
Major: Liberal Studies: Date of Graduation:

Undergraduate Degree:
Other College/University(s):
Maijor:
Secondary Degree:
Seminary/graduate:
Maijor: Date of Graduation:
Degree:

What special courses have you taken pertaining to the correctional chaplaincy?

lil. MINISTERIAL RECORD:
When were you ordained? Licensed?
By Whom?
Denominational Affiliation:
Have you ever had experience in interdenominational work? CYes 0O No

Prison Ministry of America | 8129 Somerset Blvd. Paramount, CA 90723 |  PH: (562)531-0117  Fax: (562)531-2269
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Can you work harmoniously with others who differ with you doctrinally?

5

Employment history for the past ten years. Begir: with most current position:

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND:

Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offense? 0O Yes 0 No
If yes, When? Where?

Charges

What do you consider minimal salary needs?

REFERENCES:
Please give names and addresses of three (3) business and three (3) professional r
than relatives, who know you and can attest to your suitability for chaplaincy:

Business References
Name: Relationship:

eferences other

Contact Information:

Name: Relationship:

Contact Information:

Name: Relationship:

Contact Information:

Professional References
Name: Relationship:

Contact Information:

Name: Relationship:

Contact Information:

Name: Relationship:

Contact Information:

Prison Ministry of America | 8129 Somerset Blvd. Paramount, CA 90723 | PH: (562)531-0117  Fax: (562)531

2269
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PERSONAL DATA

These questions are for the leadership of Christian Chaplain Service to get to know
personally and are not required answers for employment. Please leave this section
uncomfortable with anything herein.

FAMILY AND MARITAL RELATIONSHIP:
Name of Spouse

5

a little about you
blank if you are

Does your spouse share your interest in this ministry?

How many children do you have? List names and ages of children

DISABILITIES:

Do you have any physical disabilities? 0O Yes ©INo
If so, please state nature of this disability:

CHURCH AFFILIATION:
Local Church you are presently a member of:

Address:

Name of Pastor:

Are you actively involved in this church?

List your activities with your church:

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
Explain your personal concern for the inmate and his social welfare: as well as your
inmate and his personal commitment to Christ:

concern for the

Prison Ministry of America | 8129 Somerset Bivd. Paramount, CA 90723 | PH: (562)531-0117 Fax: (562)531-2269
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STATEMENT OF APPLICANT’S CHRISTIAN FAITH

Christian Chaplain Services and Prison Ministry of America are non-profit, ec
organizations whose purpose is to serve God under the leadership of Jesus Chr
Christian Chaplain Services and/or Prison Ministry of America are committed to a life
and agree with our statement of faith.

Mission Statement

Prison Ministry of America is an organization bringing hope and restoration tc
experienced incarceration, through prayer, spiritual counseling, printed materials, and (

Statement of Faith

We believe in one God, Creator and Lord of the Universe, the co-eternal Trinity; Fat
Spirit.

i

f5

umenical Christian
ist. Employees of

style of Christianity

) those who have
Chaplaincy support.

her, Son, and Holy

We believe that Jesus Christ, God’s Son, was conceived by the Holy Spirit, born of th
a sinless life, died a substitutionary atoning death on the cross, rose bodily from the

e Virgin Mary, lived
ead and ascended

to heaven where, as truly God and truly man, He is the only mediator between God and man.

We believe that the Bible is God’s authoritative and inspired Word. It is without error
including creation, history, its own origins, and salvation. Christians must submit to

in all its teachings,
its divine authority,

both individually and corporately, in all matters of belief and conduct, which is demonstrated by true

righteous living.

We believe that all people are lost sinners and cannot see the Kingdom of God exce

birth. Justification is by grace through faith in Christ alone. Those who reject Jesus
and Savior in the present life shall be raised from the dead for eternal suffering and s

pt through the new

Fhrist as their Lord

eparation from God.

Those who accept Jesus Christ as their Lord and Savior will be present with him for eternity in heaven.

We believe in one holy, universal, and apostolic Church. Its calling is to worship and
its Head, Jesus Christ, preaching the Gospel among all people groups and demonstra
by compassionate service to the needs of human beings and promoting righteousness ¢

We believe in the necessity of the work of the Holy Spirit for the individual's new H
maturity; and also for the Church’s constant renewal in truth, wisdom, faith, holiness
mission.

We believe that Jesus Christ will personally and visibly return in glory to raise th
salvation and judgment to completion. God will fully manifest His kingdom when He
heaven and new earth, in which He will be glorified forever and exclude all evil, suffering

Without mental reservation, | hereby subscribe to the above statements.

Signature: Date:
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Prison Ministry of America | 8129 Somerset Blvd. Paramount, CA 90723 | PH: (562)531-0117  Fax (562)531

2269
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EXHIBIT B



Case 8:21-cv-01319-PWG Document 1-3 Filed 05/27/21 Page 3 0% 3

» Supervise the religious services being provided to assure that the rules and guidelines
are being adhered to and that the spiritual needs of the inmates are being met within the
requirements of security.

* Supervise and assist visiting clergy in their contacts with inmates housed in the facility
confirming their credentials.

e Screen and distribute religious materials.

e Conduct home visits and death notifications to family, as is appropriate.
e Verify critical illness and death notification of inmate family members and arrange for
inmate notification, possible transportation and removal orders, as per established

guidelines.

* Respond in the event of an emergency, when required

e Follow direction of security staff in matters concerning facility safety and security

e Comply with all applicable facility rules and regulations as set forth by the Prince George
County Inmate Services Division.

SUPERVISORY D
In accordance
perform the following supervisory responsibilities: Interviewing, hiring orienting and training
employees; planning, assigning, and directing work; coaching and appraising performance;

‘épp icable compéhy policies/procedures and Federal/State |aws, maj;

rewarding and disciplining employees; addressing complaints and resolving problems

This position does not supervise any paid staff, but will be responsible for screening, training
and overseeing religious volunteers who assist at the facility under the direction of Inmate
Services.

M [IONS
The following are the minimum qualific ch an individual needs in order to successfully
perform the duties and responsibilities of this position.  Please note that the minimum

qualifications may vary based upon the department size and/or geographic location.

0 Pastoral or ordained minister license from a recognized affiliation.

Q At least two years membership in a recognized church.

0 Minimum of two years of 24 units of college counseling or theology classes or
equivalent.

0 High school diploma or equivalent; 5+ years progressively responsible, related

experience.

Demonstrated leadership in the non-profit sector or Para church operations.

Must have worked a minimum of one year as a chaplain (or volunteer) in a correctional

facility.

Excellent planning, organizing and leadership/supervisory skills.

Strong staffing, development and appraisal skills.

Excellent verbal, written, PC/Mac and presentation skills.

Strong customer service, quality control and results oriented focus.

Ability to interact effectively at all levels and break down barriers across diverse cultures.

Must be a team builder, devoted to staff/volunteer development.

o0

Oo0oDOo0oOo

Employee Signature: Date:

Board Representative: Date:

Updated: July, 2016





